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Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens of the City of Pacifica, California

We are pleased to submit the City of Pacifica’'s Comprehensive Annual financial Report (CAFR) for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in the CAFR. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management
has established a comprehensive framework of internal control that is designed both to protect the
government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse, and to compile sufficient reliable information for the
preparation of the City’s financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). As the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective
is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any
material misstatements.

The City’s independent audit involves examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The City’s
independent auditor, Maze & Associates, has issued an unmodified (“clean”) opinion on the City of
Pacifica’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The independent auditor's
report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

In addition to meeting the requirements set forth by State law, the audit is also designed to meet the
requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the auditor to report on the City’s
internal controls and compliance with certain legal requirements with special emphasis on the
administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the City’s separately issued Single
Audit Report.

GAAP and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board require that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement
the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City’'s MD&A can be found immediately
following the report of the independent auditors.



City of Pacifica Profile

The City of Pacifica is a full service city located on the Pacific Coast in San Mateo County directly south
of San Francisco. Located within the Bay Area Peninsula, it is framed by the ridges of the Coast Range
on the east, Montara Mountains on the south, and the Pacific Ocean on the west. The City of Pacifica
encompasses roughly 12.6 square miles (of which approximately one-half is publicly owned open
space), is largely built out, and serves a population of approximately 39,000. A combination of
residential, office and commercial retail businesses, and natural open space, comprise the makeup of
the City. The City of Pacifica, while located in the midst of a major metropolitan region, is a unique
family-oriented coastal community that prides itself on fostering a “small town” feel. The City’s
geographic setting, its proximity to San Francisco and the San Francisco International Airport, along
with its natural open space and coastal beauty, make it a desirable place to live and work.

The City of Pacifica is a General Law City incorporated in 1957 and operates under the Council-
Manager form of government. Legislative authority is vested in a five-member City Council elected at
large for four-year overlapping terms. The Mayor is selected each year by a majority vote of the other
Council members. The Council appoints the City Manager, City Attorney, and members of advisory
commissions and committees.

The City provides the following services to its residents: public safety (police and fire), highways and
streets, sanitation, parks, beaches, and recreation, social services, planning and zoning, and leadership
through general administrative services.

Water, garbage, gas and electric utilities are provided directly through private agencies not under City
operations.

The City performed certain infrastructure construction and economic development activities through a
separate Redevelopment Agency until its dissolution on February 1, 2012. The City of Pacifica
accepted the role of Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency per Council action on January
23, 2012.

Economic and Financial Outlook

California’s economy is expected to continue to grow faster than the U.S. Economy, but is expected to slow
down in 2020 consistent with the slowing of the national economy. The Bay Area’s growth is notable in
light of its housing and labor force constraints as unemployment is below 3 percent throughout the region.
According to the Bureau of Labor Statistics, in November 2018, the United States unemployment rate was
3.6 percent, the State of California was 4.1 percent, and San Mateo County was 2.1 percent.’

Pacifica’s coastal location on the Bay Area Peninsula with its natural open space and coastal beauty, along
with its proximity to the San Francisco International Airport and its visitor-serving resources, continues to
be an asset for development in the City.

While residential development has reached near build out conditions, commercial development potential
is high in Pacifica as several commercially zoned sites are in various phases of the permit process and
other commercial sites remain undeveloped or underdeveloped. The City and the Pacifica Chamber of
Commerce are active in encouraging resident and visitor-serving business startups.

1 Bureau of Labor Statistics, San Francisco Area Economic Summary — Updated November 30, 2018




The City of Pacifica has continued to be fiscally conservative in financial investments, as well as with
the development of a Long-Term Financial Plan. The current Long-Term Financial Plan was presented
to the City Council in April 2018. The City remains vigilant in its efforts to continue to provide essential
City services, while maintaining sufficient levels of fiscal control and accountability.

The City maintains budgetary controls, the objective of which is to ensure compliance with legal
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the City's governing body.
Activities of the general fund, special revenue funds, enterprise funds, debt service fund, and internal
service funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. The Capital Improvement Projects
budget reflects existing projects that do not lapse at year-end, but are carried forward until completion

of the project.

The City Council conducts public hearings before adopting the budget, thus giving the public an
opportunity to be heard. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot
legally exceed the appropriated amount) is maintained at the department level by tracking expenditures
and budget authority. Unexpended budget appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year with the
exception of capital improvement projects.

The City Manager is responsible for the preparation of the budget, and along with the Assistant City
Manager, is responsible for monitoring the budget for legal compliance.

Acknowledgements
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& ASSOCIATES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Pacifica, California

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of governmental activities, business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Pacifica, California (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as
listed in the Table of Contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

T 925.930.0902
Accountancy Corporation F 925.930.0135
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215 E Maze@mazeassociates.com
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 w mazeassociates.com



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of governmental activities, business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2018, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Change in Accounting Principles

Management adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement
No. 75 - Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, which became effective during the year ended June 30, 2018 and required the
restatement of beginning net position as discussed in Notes 12 and 7 to the financial
statements.

The emphasis of this matter does not constitute modifications to our opinion.
Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and other Required Supplementary Information, as
listed in the Table of Contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The Introductory Section,
Supplementary Information, and Statistical Section as listed in the Table of Contents are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial
statements.



The Supplementary Information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the Supplementary Information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The Introductory and Statistical Sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 30, 2018, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

M aze A< Assoa‘ajyzg

Pleasant Hill, California
November 30, 2018
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S City of Pacifica

& Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the year ended June 30, 2018

The management staff of the City of Pacifica (City), offers readers of the City’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of City financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. It has been
designed in accordance with standards established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
Please read this overview in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s financial statements, which
are comprised of three components:

o Government-Wide Financial Statements — These statements provide information about the
activities of the City as a whole and about the overall financial condition of the City. The Statement
of Net Position and Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position statements includes all
assets and liabilities of the City using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the
accounting used by most private-sector companies.

¢ Fund Financial Statements — These statements provide additional information about the City’s
major funds, how services were financed in the short term and fund balances available for
financing future projects.

¢ Notes to the Financial Statements — The notes provide additional detail that is essential to a full
understanding of the information provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required and other supplementary information, including budgetary comparison information on the City’s
General Fund, which is intended to furnish additional detail to support the basic financial statements
themselves.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Financial highlights of the year ended June 30, 2018 include the following:

Government-wide:

e The City's total net position was $60.1 million at June 30, 2018 of which $34.3 million was in
Governmental Activities and $25.8 million was in Business-type Activities. Of the total net position,
$75.6 million relates to the City’s net investment in capital assets and is not available for future
appropriation (see tables 1 and 4 for additional information).

e Total City revenues were $56.1 million, of which $41.5 million was derived from Governmental
Activities; $14.3 million was derived from Business-type Activities (see tables 2 and 5 for additional
information).

e Total City expenses were $55.1 million, of which Governmental Activities incurred $41.6 million
and Business-type Activities incurred $13.5 million (see tables 2 and 5 for additional information).



a0 PG, City of Pacifica
” Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
~ For the year ended June 30, 2018

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS, Continued

Fund Level:

Governmental fund balances totaled $24.7 million, the Enterprise funds had a $25.8 million net position,
and there was a cumulative net position of $6.1 million in the Internal Service Funds, of which $1.9 million
relates to the City’s Internal Service Funds net investment in capital assets.

e Proprietary Fund operating revenues were $14.3 million in the
Enterprise Funds and $2.5 million in the Internal Service Funds.

e Proprietary Fund operating expenses were $12.0 million in the
Enterprise funds and $2.6 million in the Internal Service Funds.

e Net non-operating expenses were approximately $1.0 million in
the Enterprise Funds and net non-operating revenues were
$50,469 in the Internal Service Funds.

General Fund:
e General Fund revenues were $32.3 million and expenditures were $30.0 million.
e Net transfers out of the General Fund were $1.0 million.
e The fund balance of the General Fund was $12.6 million at June 30, 2018, all of which has been
classified in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board No. 54.

General Capital Improvement Fund:
e Fund revenues were $0.9 million and expenditures were $3.4 million.
e Net transfers into the Fund were $0.7 million.
e The fund balance of the Fund is a deficit of approximately $2.2 million at June 30, 2018.

Gas Tax Fund:
e Fund revenues were $1.0 million and expenditures were $0.6 million.
e Net transfers out of the Fund were $0.4 million.
e The fund balance of the Fund was $0.2 million at June 30, 2018; the total amount is classified as
restricted for allowable street expenditures under the California Street and Highway Code.

Davies Trust Fund:

e Fund revenues were $3,740 and expenditures were $104.

e There were no transfers into or out of the Fund.

e The fund balance of the Fund was $3.5 million at June 30, 2018; the total amount is classified as
restricted for use to help acquire, build, remodel, improve, support and maintain the equipment,
building, grounds, yard, gardens and landscaped areas of the various parks, beaches, and
recreational areas located in Pacifica and to conduct related educational and recreation programs for
the benefit of the general public.

Debt Service Fund:
e Fund revenues were $1.5 million and expenditures were $2.3 million.
e Net transfers into the Fund were $0.8 million.
e The fund balance of the Fund was $2.0 million at June 30, 2018; the total amount is classified
as restricted for debt service.



o PAgy, City of Pacifica
" Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
& For the year ended June 30, 2018

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

These government-wide financial statements include all assets and liabilities of the City using the accrual
basis of accounting. All current year revenues and expenses are accounted for regardless of when the cash
is paid or received.

These statements report the City’s net position and how it has changed. Net position, the difference between
assets, liabilities and deferred inflows/outflows of resources, is one way to measure the City’s financial health,
or position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net position are among indicators used to assess
whether the financial condition of the City is improving or deteriorating. It is also important to consider other
non-financial factors, such as changes in the City’s property tax values and sales tax outlets, and the condition
of the City’s infrastructure (i.e. parks and streets), to accurately assess the overall health of the City.

The Government-wide statements present information about the City’s activities. These include services
provided by police, fire, community development, public works and parks, beaches, and recreations. These
services are funded from monies received from property, sales and other taxes, direct charges for services
provided, grants, contributions from other agencies and impact fees collected from new development. The
following analysis focuses on net position and how it has changed, within the City's Governmental Activities
(Tables 1, 2 and 3) and Business-Type Activities (Tables 4 and 5) as presented in the Government-wide
Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Position.



#,  City of Pacifica
” Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
* For the year ended June 30, 2018

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

Governmental Activities

Net position, representing the difference between total assets and total liabilities, of the City's governmental
activities was $34.3 million at June 30, 2018, an decrease of 6.3% from the total at June 30, 2017. The table
below summarizes the City’s net position.

The City implemented new pension accounting standards during 2014-15, following guidance from the
Government Accounting Standards Board. The Net Pension Liability of $49.6 million has been recorded as
of June 30, 2018. These new pension accounting standards respond to public interest about government
pensions and provide new transparency about the City’s considerable pension obligations and their funding
progress. Comparative financial information is presented below to provide the reader with highlights of
changes from the prior year.

Table 1
Governmental Statement of Net Position (In Millions) at June 30,

2018 2017

Cash and investments $ 24 .1 $ 23.1
Other assets 8.2 Tl
Capital assets 76.6 73.6
Total assets 108.9 104.4
Deferred Outflows of Resources 16.2 16.7
Current liabilities 5.6 6.2
Non-current liabilities 81.0 73.3
Total liabilities 86.6 79.5
Deferred Inflows of Resources 3.3 4.8

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 59.6 56.6
Restricted 18.2 17.0
Unrestricted (42.6) (37.0)
Total net position $ 35.2 $ 36.6

10
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

Of the City’s total net position, $59.6 million reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g. land,
infrastructure, buildings, and equipment). The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. The City’s total liabilities of $86.6 million
represent outstanding obligations for operations, capital projects, and deposits held for development projects
and long-term debt.

Governmental Activities

The charts below summarize general City revenues available for funding all City programs and major
expenditure program categories, as well as program revenues used to fund specific expenditure programs.
For fiscal year 2017-18, total revenues and transfers from all sources relating to governmental activities were
$41.3 million and total expenditures for all City programs relating to governmental activities were $41.6 million.

Governmental Activities - Sources of Revenues
FY2017-2018
$41.3M

Capital Contributions
and Grants 9%

Operating
Contributions and
Grants 9%\

Property taxes 33%

Transfers’

2 T o/
Investment earnings Other taxes 12%

0%
fanchise taxes 4%
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Governmental Activities - Sources of Expenses
FY2017-2018
$41.6M

Community

Interest on long-term
development, 6% .

F il oy o debt, 7%
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

Table 2

Change in Net Position - Governmental Activities for fiscal year ended June 30,

(In Millions)

Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for senice
Operating contributions and grants
Capital grants
Total program revenues
General revenues
Taxes:
Property
Sales and use
Franchise
Other taxes
Miscellaneous
Motor Vehicle In Lieu

Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers
Total revenues
Expenses
Public safety
Public works

Community development
Parks, beaches and recreation
General government
Interest on long-term debt
Total expenses

Transfer of capital assets
Change in net position - Governmental Activities

Net position - beginning (Note 12C)

Net position - ending
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2018 2017
6.7 6.3
3.5 4.1
3.8 2.5
14.0 12.9
13.8 12.7
2.4 2.4
1.7 1.7
4.9 3.8
0.6 1.6
4.0 3.7
0.1 0.8
27.5 26.7
41.5 39.6
17.2 14.3
7.4 57
2.3 2.0
5.0 4.9
7.2 5.1
1.9 2.5
41.0 34.5
0.5 5.1
34.7 31.6
35.2 36.7
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued
Governmental Activities, Continued

Table 2, presented on the prior page, shows that governmental expenses,
which totaled $41.6 million, were offset in part by program revenues for
governmental activities of $14.0 million. These program revenues included
$6.7 million in charges for services, $3.5 million in operating grants and
contributions, and $3.8 million in capital grants and contributions. Charges
for services include traffic safety fines, plan check fees, building inspection &
fees, other charges related to new construction, and fees charged for g
parks, beaches, and recreational events. Operating grants and
contributions mclude amounts that can only go toward operations-related =
expenses, while capital grants and contributions are required to go toward capital investments. General
revenues, as shown in Table 2 on the previous page, are available to pay for expenses not fully covered by
program generated revenues.

Table 3 presents the program revenues and net expense of each of the City's largest programs. Net expense
is defined as total program cost less the revenues generated or contributions received by those specific
activities.

Table 3
Governmental Activities
Program Revenues and Net (Expense) Revenue From Services for fiscal year ended June 30,

(In Millions)

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue

2018 2017 2018 2017
General government 3 1.7 $ 2.4 $ (5.5) $ (2.7)
Public Safety 1.6 1.3 (15.6) (13.0)
Community development 2.2 2.3 0.1) 0.4
Public works 4.8 3.6 (2.5) 2.1)
Parks, beaches, and recreation 3.8 3.3 (1%2) 1.7)
Debt Senice - - (2.8) (2.4)
Interest on long-term debt - - = =

Totals $ 14.0 $ 12.9 $ (27.7) $ (21.6)

Business-type Activities

The net position of the City’s business-type activities was $25.8 million at June 30, 2018. Assets included a
total of $8.0 million in cash and investments, $14.2 million in cash and investments with fiscal agents, $55.8
million in capital assets, Deferred Outflows of $0.7 million, and $2.5 million in other assets. Liabilities include
$47.3 million in long-term liabilities, $0.2 million in Deferred Inflows, and $8.0 million in current liabilities. Total
revenues for business-type activities totaled $14.3 million for fiscal year 2017-18 while expenses totaled $13.0
million.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued
Business-type Activities, Continued

Table 4
Business -Type Statement of Net Position at June 30,
(In Millions)
2018 2017
Cash and investments $ 8.0 $ 8.9
Other assets 16.7 28.6
Capital assets 55.8 40.9
Total assets 80.5 78.4
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 0.7 0.1
Current Liabilities 6.9 3.4
Non-Current Liabilities 48.4 49.9
Total liabilities 55.3 53.3
Deferred related to pensions 0.1 0.4
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 0.1 0.2
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 16.0 16.0
Unrestricted 9.8 9.8
Total net position $ 25.8 $ 25.8
Table 5
Change in Net Position - Business-type Activities for fiscal year ended June 30,
(In Millions)
Revenues 2018 2017
Program revenues
Charges for senice $ 14.3 $ 13.2
Capital grants - -
Total program revenues 14.3 182
Total revenues 14.3 13.2
Expenses
Sewer Operations 12.5 11.8
Beach Parking 0.6 0.5
Total expenses 1341 12.3
Excess (deficiency) before transfers 12 0.9
Transfers 0.1 (0.8)
Change in net position - Business-Type Activities $ 1.3 $ 0.1
Net position - beginning (Note 11C) $ 246 $ 25.7
Net position - ending $ 25.8 $ 25.8
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

These statements provide more detailed information about the City’s major funds. A fund is a grouping of
related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a City’s or government agency’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements,
it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented
for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
fund balance sheet and governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.

The City has twenty governmental funds, of which six are considered major funds for presentation purposes.
Each major fund is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental
fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance. The City’s six major funds are - the
General Fund, the Gas Tax Fund, the General Capital Improvement Fund, the Davies Trust Fund, the Disaster
Accounting Fund, and the Debt Service Fund. The City has classified these funds as major funds. Data from
the other fourteen governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. Budgetary comparison statements have
been provided in the Required Supplementary Information section for these funds that demonstrates
compliance with their budgets.

Proprietary funds

The City maintains two types of proprietary funds, Enterprise Funds and Internal Service Funds. Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The City uses two enterprise funds; the Sewer Ultility which accounts for the operation
and maintenance of the City’s wastewater collection system, (this fund is classified as major funds in the
City's Statement of Net Position), and the Beach Parking Fund, which accounts for the operation and
maintenance of the City’s beach parking facilities. The Beach Parking Fund was established during the 2014-
15 fiscal year. Internal service funds are used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s
various functions and to build up reserves for future replacement of capital assets. The City uses internal
service funds to account for its fleet of vehicles and equipment.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued
Proprietary funds, Continued

Because these services solely benefit the governmental function, they have been included within
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The two internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal service funds is
provided in the form of combining statements in the Supplemental Information section of this report.

Fiduciary Funds

The City is the agent for certain agencies and assessment districts, holding amounts collected which await
payment as directed. The City’s fiduciary activities are reported in the separate Statement of Fiduciary Net
Position and the Agency Funds Statement of Assets and Liabilities. These activities are excluded from the
City’s other financial statements because the City is acting as a trustee for these funds and cannot use these
assets to finance its own operations. The City’s fiduciary funds include a private-purpose trust fund to account
for the activities of the City of Pacifica Successor Agency.

Summary Analysis of Governmental Funds

At June 30, 2018, the City’s governmental fund balances were $24.7 million. The following describe the
specifics related to this variance:

e Anincrease of $2.2 million in the General Fund, primarily due to slight increases in revenues including
property tax ($0.7 million), licenses and permits ($0.2 million), and intergovernmental revenues ($0.7
million), netted against increases in expenditures;

e Anincrease of $1.8 million in the Disaster Accounting Fund due to increased expenditures due to the
City’s response to the winter storms of 2015-2016. Please note that the Disaster Accounting Fund
has been added to the Major Funds group;

e An increase of $2.0 million in the Other Governmental Funds category primarily due to receipts in the
Excess Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) of $1.9 million.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

Summary Analysis of Governmental Funds, Continued

Revenues

Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Charges for current senices
Recreation programs
Other revenue
Transfers
Total revenues

Expenditures

General government
Public safety
Community dewelopment
Public works

Table 6

Parks, beaches, and recreation

Capital outlay

Debt senice
Transfers (net)

Total expenditures

18

Change in Fund Balance- Governmental Funds for the fiscal year ended June 30,
(In Millions)

2018 2017

$ 238 § 22.4
1.0 0.8

0.2 0.2

0.3 1.0

7.6 6.6

2.8 2.7

1.0 0.9

4.7 4.2

$ 41.4 $ 38.8
$ 45  § 4.5
16.2 15.5

2.1 1.9

4.0 4.6

4.2 4.4

6.7 1.9

1.0 3.8

1.3 0.7

$ 40.0 $ 37.3




5 P, . -
&9 %, City of Pacifica

v ” Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
* For the year ended June 30, 2018

_—

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued
Detailed Analysis of Major Governmental Funds by Fund
General Fund

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. &
For the year ending June 30, 2018, the total fund balance |

was $12.6 million, just over 43.1% of which is non- =
spendable or has been committed or assigned to cover
contingencies, claims, advances to other funds and other |
City projects.

Revenues increased by $1.9 million in 2017-18 compared
to last fiscal year, an increase of 6.2%. Expenditures
increased $1.2 million in fiscal year 2017-18 compared to
last fiscal year, a change of 4.2%. Significant changes in 2
revenues and expenditures that affected the General Fund e
balances are discussed below: a

General Fund Revenues

Property Tax increased by $699,686 (6.3%) compared to the prior year resulting from increases in property
tax from the distribution of residual payments from real property transfer tax revenues generated from the
sale of property within the City, and higher assessed property valuations.

Sales and All Other Taxes decreased $61,931 (0.8%) from the prior year primarily due to slight decreases
in, sales tax, franchise tax, transient occupancy tax, and business license tax.

Intergovernmental revenues increased $683,684 (13.4%) from fiscal year 2016-17 due to the increase in
the amounts received for state motor vehicle license revenues and supplemental tax netted and state and
county grants for childcare, seniors, and police.

Charges for Services revenues increased by $44,761 (1.6%) from prior fiscal year mainly due to the increase
in reimbursement for fire services offset by slight decrease in volume of development and renovation projects
for planning, engineering, and building review and processing.

Licenses, Permits and Fees revenues increased by $226,559 (28.7%) compared to the prior fiscal year due
to the increase of the volume of permits including building, plumbing, electrical and home occupation permit
fees.

Fines, Forfeitures, And Penalties and All Other Revenues increased by $303,369 (10.4%) from the prior
fiscal year; the majority of this increase is due to vehicle code fines and recreation program revenues.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued
Detailed Analysis of Major Governmental Funds by Fund, Continued
General Fund Expenditures

Public Safety expenditures consisting of the Police and Fire departments increased $750,000 (4.9%). More
than 50% of the increase is due to salaries and benefits.

Public Works expenditures increased $560,000 (21.1%) compared to the prior year. The increase is due to
salaries and benéefits, utilities and departmental expenses.

Planning Department expenditures increased $142,000 (7.8%) from fiscal year 2016-17. Contractual
services is the main reason for the increase along with a slight increase in salaries and benefits.

Parks, Beaches, And Recreation expenditures decreased by $163,000 (3.8%) from the prior year. Salaries
and benefits decreased for child care programs coupled with significant decrease in rental and lease
expenses.

General Government expenditures decreased $94,000 (2.1%) from the prior year. The decrease is due to
salaries and benefits, and operating software.

General Capital Improvement Fund

The Capital Improvement Fund accounts for funds used for capital
improvements and significant maintenance projects. As of June
30, 2018, its fund deficit was $2.2 million. The increase in the
deficit is due to capital outlay for the Palmetto Streetscape Project.
Project reimbursements are expected to be received in fiscal year
2018-19.

Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund

The Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund was established to receive
and expend the City’s allocation of the State Gasoline Taxes.
Expenditures are restricted for street related purposes, including construction or purchasmg of right- of—ways
on minor streets and street engineering. As of June 30, 2018, its fund balance of $240,000 is restricted for
street related purposes.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued
Detailed Analysis of Major Governmental Funds by Fund, Continued

Davies Trust Fund

The Davies Trust Fund accounts for a donation by a private individual which is restricted for specific purposes.
The funds are to be used to help acquire, build, remodel, improve, support, and maintain equipments,
buildings, grounds, yards, gardens, and landscaped areas of the various parks, beaches, and recreational
area located in Pacifica and to conduct related educational and recreational programs for the benefit of the
general public. As of June 30, 2018, its fund balance was approximately $3.5 million.

Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund for the accumulation and disbursement of funds from the financing of various long-
term debt liabilities. As of June 30, 2018, its fund balance was approximately $2.0 million. This fund balance
is typically restricted or assigned for the payment of long term debt that the City has incurred.

Disaster Accounting Fund

The Disaster Accounting Fund accounts for both revenues (from grants and other reimbursements) and
expenditures associated with catastrophic events occurring in the City. As of June 30, 2018, its fund deficit
was approximately $3.9 million. However, the City does expect some level of reimbursement for Disaster
related expenditures from third parties, thus mitigating this deficit in the future.

Summary Analysis of Proprietary Funds

As of June 30, 2018, the Enterprise Fund had a net position balance of $25.8 million, representing $1.2 million
(4.7%) increase. The maijority of the net position (62%) is held for the net investment in capital assets.

The net position balance of the Internal Service Funds is $6.1 million, an increase of approximately $0.9
million (16.4%) from the previous fiscal year.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued
Summary Analysis of Proprietary Funds, Continued

Table 7
Change in Fund Net Position - Proprietary Funds for the year ended June 30,
(In Millions)
Total Enterprise Funds Total Internal Service Funds
2018 2017 2018 2017
Operating revenues $ 143  $ 13.2 $ 25 § 2.5
Operating expenses 12.0 11.5 2.6 2.7
Operating income (loss) 2.3 1.7 0.1) (0.2)
Non-operating revenues (expenses) (1.0) 0.7) 0.1 0.0
Net income (loss) before contributions
and operating transfers 1.3 1.0 - (0.2)
Transfers in (out) 0.1) (0.8) 0.9 0.3
Change in net position 3 1.2  § 0.1 $ 09 $ 0.1

Sewer Utility Enterprise Funds

This fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s wastewater collection system, including
the operating costs of the wastewater collection system and water recycling plant. Of the total net position,
$16.0 million was invested in capital assets, net of related debt.

Parking Enterprise Fund
This fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the City’s parking facilities. The fund was
established during the 2014-15 fiscal year.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS OF THE CITY’S GENERAL FUND

Over the course of the year, the City Council revised the City’s budget with adjustments for various revenue
and expenditure changes. After taking into account these adjustments, General Fund actual revenues were
more than the final budget by $0.9 million (2.9%). General Fund actual expenditures were approximately
$1.2 million (3.9%) under the final budget.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG TERM DEBT

Capital Assets

GASB 34 requires the City to record all of its capital assets, including infrastructure in the Statement of Net
Position. Infrastructure includes roads, bridges, signals and similar assets used by the entire population. The
City has recorded its capital assets at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost was
not available. In addition, donated fixed assets have been valued at their estimated fair market value on the
date donated.

Table 8
Capital Assets at June 30,
(In Millions)
2018 2017
Governmental activities

Land $ 40.4 $ 39.8
Construction in progress 5.3 1.7
Building and improvements 16.0 16.0
Machinery and equipment 2.8 2.7
Vehicles 7.0 6.9
Infrastructure 34.3 34.2
Less accumulated depreciation (29.2) (27.6)

Totals $ 76.6 $ 73.7

Business-type activities

Land $ 40 § 4.0
Construction in progress 14.8 1.3
Buildings 77.3 77.2
Collection Systems 16.6 12.7
Machinery and equipment 2.0 1.7
Less accumulated depreciation (58.8) (56.0)

Totals $ 559 $ 40.9

At June 30, 2018 the cost of infrastructure and other capital assets recorded on the City's financial statements
is shown in Table 8 above.

At June 30, 2018, the City had $76.6 million, net of depreciation, invested in a broad range of capital assets
used in governmental activities and $55.8 million, also net of depreciation, invested in Business-type activities
assets, as shown in the table above.

The City depreciates all its capital assets on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The purpose
of depreciation is to spread the cost of a capital asset over the years of its useful life so that an allocable
portion of the cost of the asset is borne by all users. Additional information on capital assets may be found in
Notes 1 and 5.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG TERM DEBT, Continued

Long Term Debt

At June 30, 2018 the City's Governmental Activities had debt outstanding in the amount of approximately
$26.3 million, all backed by the full faith and credit of the government. More information on long-term debt
activity may be found in Note 5 of the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

Table 9
Outstanding Debt at June 30,
(In Millions)
2018 2017

Governmental activities

2008 Certificate of Participation

2016 Certificate of Participation 3 169 $ 17.0

Capital Lease Payable 0.6 0.7

2010 Pension Obligation Bond 8.9 9.7

Notes Payable - -

Total Debt Outstanding $ 26.3 $ 27.4

Total Bonded Debt Outstanding $ 26.3 $ 27.4

The City has made all required debt service payments on the issues listed above. The City maintains an
“AA-" rating from Standard and Poor’s on the General Obligation debt.

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK AND MAJOR INITIATIVES

As the City looks ahead to fiscal year 2018-2019, management remains encouraged by the relatively strong
growth in our regional economy.

The City has a promising future buoyed by vision, innovation and partnerships. To assist in the development
of the 2018-2019 Budget and to improve the City’s fiscal health, the City Council has reviewed the City’s Long
Term Financial Plan for the last four fiscal years. This practice will continue into the FY 2018-19 fiscal year
as well.

While revenues remain stable, expenditure pressures to maintain existing services, infrastructure and facilities
are substantial. Increases in employee benefit costs are expected to rise for the existing retirement and health
care systems provided as part of overall compensation strategies to attract and retain high performing
individuals to serve our community.

The City is able to achieve a balanced budget for fiscal year 2018-19 and maintain reserves for the General
Fund through a combination of measures, including the following:

% Cost Recovery. With the completion of the Cost Allocation Plan and Fee Study, the City began to have
a better understanding of the true cost of delivering services and has moved toward recovering those
costs in appropriate ways.
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% Expand the City’s Reserve Policy to address additional reserve designations, and begin funding them.
% Budget annual expenses at or below annual revenues to ensure the City is living within its means.

% Align one-time money to cover one-time expenses rather than ongoing operations. This is a direction
that the City has implemented.

* Increase financial transparency. In recent budget communications, staff has been focused on sharing
financial information is such a way as to engender trust in how the City manages the public’s money.
Sharing the assumptions in the City’s financial projections is a key example of this emphasis on
transparency, as is translating numbers and spreadsheets into a meaningful, easy to read, document
at the conclusion of the budget process.

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is intended to provide citizens, taxpayers, investors, and
creditors with a general overview of the City's finances. Questions about this report should be directed to
Lorenzo Hines Jr., Assistant City Manager at City of Pacifica, City Manager’s Office, 170 Santa Maria Avenue,
Pacifica, California 94044.

A copy of this financial report is also located at the City’s website at http://www.cityofpacifica.org, by selecting
“‘Departments/Administrative Services/Finance/Comprehensive Annual Financial Report” and then selecting

the “year”.
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CITY OF PACIFICA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS
Cash and investments (Note 3)
Cash and investments with fiscal agents (Note 3)
Restricted cash and investments (Note 3)

Taxes receivable
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
Prepaid items
Inventories
Receivable from successor agency (Note 10)
Capital assets, not being depreciated (Note 4)
Capital assets, being depreciated,

net of accumulated depreciation (Note 4)
Internal balances (Note 9)

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charge on refunding of debt
Related to OPEB (Note 6)

Related to pension (Note 7)

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Interest payable
Refundable deposits
Unearned revenue
Claims payable due within one year (Note 8)
Compensated absences (Note 1M):
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Long term debt (Note 5):
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Net OPEB Liabilities, due in more than one year (Note 6)
Net pension liabilities, due in more than one year (Note 7)

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to OPEB (Note 6)
Related to pension (Note 7)

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION (Note 11)

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for:
Construction of capital assets
Streets, highways, and other related purposes
Parks, beaches and recreation
Stormwater operations
Public safety

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

See accompanying notes to financial statements

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
$24,080,509 $7,953,075 $32,033,584
349,156 14,193,533 14,542,689
3,464,691 3,464,691
1,104,143 1,104,143
1,294,261 33,530 1,327,791
154,622 359,054 513,676
24,871 143,675 168,546
3,777,419 3,777,419
45,789,334 18,789,624 64,578,958
30,821,004 37,036,759 67,857,763
(1,956,755) 1,956,755
108,903,255 80,466,005 189,369,260
837,880 292,016 1,129,896
143,049 31,401 174,450
15,227,286 400,352 15,627,638
16,208,215 723,769 16,931,984
1,627,955 4,128,048 5,756,003
893,946 97,318 991,264
1,381,821 1,381,821
137,898 137,898
847,879 201,121 1,049,000
639,628 138,161 777,789
976,027 2,454,787 3,430,814
25,363,362 45,865,807 71,229,169
5,169,314 1,134,727 6,304,041
49 558,934 1,241,738 50,800,672
86,596,764 55,261,707 141,858,471
511,476 112,275 623,751
2,809,894 51,856 2,861,750
3,321,370 164,131 3,485,501
59,589,114 15,985,969 75,575,083
9,155,545 9,155,545
4,512,896 4,512,896
3,546,702 3,546,702
766,479 766,479
238,320 238,320
(42,615,720) 9,777,967 (32,837,753)
$35,193,336 $25,763,936 $60,957,272




CITY OF PACIFICA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Contributions Contributions
Functions/Programs Expenses Services and Grants and Grants
Governmental Activities:
General government $7,156,065 $109,145 $1,588,031
Public safety 17,194,894 1,141,995 437,787
Community development 2,329,479 2,216,407
Public works 7,409,411 743,700 249,266 3,759,417
Parks, beaches and recreation 4,963,552 2,486,816 1,266,819
Interest on long-term debt 1,896,665
Total Governmental Activities 40,950,066 6,698,063 3,541,903 3,759,417
Business-type Activities:
Sewer 12,922,459 13,761,816
Beach Parking 562,426 543,919
Total Business-type Activities 13,484,885 14,305,735
Total $54,434,951 $21,003,798 $3,541,903 $3,759,417

General Revenues:

Taxes:

Property taxes
Sales and use taxes
Franchise taxes

Other taxes

Motor vehicle in lieu, unrestricted
Investment earnings

Miscellaneous

Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfer

Change in Net Position

Net Position at beginning of year, as restated (Note 11C)

Net Paosition at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
($5,458,889) ($5,458,889)
(15,615,112) (15,615,112)
(113,072) (113,072)
(2,657,028) (2,657,028)
(1,209,917) (1,209,917)
(1,896,665) (1,896,665)
(26,950,683) (26,950,683)
$839,357 839,357
(18,507) (18,507)
820,850 820,850
(26,950,683) 820,850 (26,129,833)
13,780,294 13,780,294
2,350,478 2,350,478
1,722,343 1,722,343
4,904,111 4,904,111
3,973,622 3,973,622
151,887 442,917 594,804
505,076 505,076
98,343 (98,343)
27,486,154 344,574 27,830,728
535,471 1,165,424 1,700,895
34,657,865 24,598,512 59,256,377
$35,193,336 $25,763,936 $60,957,272
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CITY OF PACIFICA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2018

Special Revenue Funds

Disaster
General Gas Tax Davies Trust Accounting
Assets
Cash and investments (Note 3) $6,542,655 $272,279
Cash and investments with fiscal agents (Note 3)
Restricted cash and investments (Note 3) $3,464,691
Receivables:
Taxes 1,097,894
Accounts 1,159,407 33,152
Due from other funds (Note 9) 3,851,216
Prepaid items 149,372
Inventories 2,056
Receivable from RDA successor agency (Note 10) 3,777,419
Advance to other funds (Note 9) 75,000
Total Assets $16,655,019 $305,431 33,464,691
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $762,212 $65,713 $149,169
Refundable deposits 1,381,821
Due to other funds (Note 9) $216 3,744,153
Unearned revenue
Advance from other funds (Note 10) 1,956,755
Total Liabilities 4,100,788 65,713 216 3,893,322
Fund balances (Note 11):
Non-spendable 4,003,847
Restricted 239,718 3,464,475
Assigned 1,407,541
Unassigned 7,142,843 (3,893,322)
Total Fund Balances 12,554,231 239,718 3,464,475 (3,893,322)

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances $16,655,019 $305,431 $3,464,691

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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General

Capital
Improvement
Capital Debt Other
Projects Service Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Total
$1,708,190 $10,693,813 $19,216,937
$13,415 335,741 349,156
3,464,691
6,249 1,104,143
14,346 85,833 1,292,738
3,851,216
5,250 154,622
2,056
3,777,419
1,849,619 1,924,619
$27,761 $2,049,181 $12,635,514 $35,137,597
$255,717 $93,946 $1,326,757
1,381,821
106,847 3,851,216
1,849,619 75,000 3,881,374
2,212,183 168,946 10,441,168
4,003,847
$2,049,181 12,466,568 18,219,942
1,407,541
(2,184,422) 1,065,099
(2,184,422) 2,049,181 12,466,568 24,696,429
$27,761 $2,049,181 $12,635,514 $35,137,597
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CITY OF PACIFICA
Reconciliation of the
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - BALANCE SHEET
with the
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

Fund Balance - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position is
different from those reported in the governmental funds because of the following:

Capital assets used in Governmental Activities are not current resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Deferred charge on refunding, net of accumulated amortization has not been reported
in the governmental funds. This was capitalized and amortized over the life of the
new debt or old debt whichever is shorter in the Statement of Net Position.

The items below are not financial resources / (not due and payable) in the current period and,
therefore are not reported in the governmental funds.
Compensated Absences
Long term debt
Interest payable
Net OPEB liabilities
Net Pension Liabilities
Deferred inflows related to pension and OPEB
Deferred outflows related to pension and OPEB

Internal service funds are used by management to charge costs of certain activities,
such as insurance and central garage, to individual funds. The assets and liabilities
of the internal service funds are included in Governmental Activities in the Statement
of Net Position.

Net Position of Governmental Activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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$24,696,429

74,743,765

837,880

(1,461,011)
(26,187,315)
(893,380)
(5,169,314)
(49,558,934)
(3,321,370)
15,370,335

6,136,251

$35,193,336
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CITY OF PACIFICA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Use of money and property
Intergovernmental
Charges for current services
Recreation programs
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government
Public safety
Community development
Public works
Parks, beaches, and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficit) of Revenues over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in (Note 9)
Transfers out (Note 9)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Changes in Fund Balances

Fund Balances (Deficits) at beginning of year

Fund Balances (Deficits) at end of year

Special Revenue Funds

Disaster
General Gas Tax Davies Trust Accounting
$19,540,697 $958,616
1,015,105
190,202
260,800 1,339 $3,740
5,784,679 $302,177
2,766,967
988,832
1,785,040 14 1,114,452
32,332,322 959,969 3,740 1,416,629
4,444 200 104
16,146,468
1,968,828
3,211,739 612,750
4,158,150
61,888 10,759 3,167,388
29,991,273 623,509 104 3,167,388
2,341,049 336,460 3,636 (1,750,759)
876,225
(983,164) (408,493)
(116,939) (408,493)
2,224,110 (72,033) 3,636 (1,750,759)
10,330,121 311,751 3,460,839 (2,142,563)
$12,554,231 $239,718 $3,464,475 ($3,893,322)

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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General

Capital
Improvement
Capital Debt Other
Projects Service Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Total
$3,268,346 $23,767,659
$20,677 1,035,782
190,202
1,046 $9,238 35,262 311,425
922,438 627,479 7,636,773
11,681 2,778,648
988,832
1,495,394 266,942 4,661,842
944 161 1,504,632 4,209,710 41,371,163
4,444,304
45,510 16,191,978
61,397 80,096 2,110,321
216,976 4,041,465
95 4,158,245
3,358,599 102,125 6,700,759
971,335 971,335
1,334,728 1,334,728
3,419,996 2,306,063 444,802 39,953,135
(2,475,835) (801,431) 3,764,908 1,418,028
725,000 811,000 2,412,225
(1,801,005) (3,202,662)
725,000 811,000 (1,801,005) (790,437)
(1,750,835) 9,569 1,963,903 627,591
(433,587) 2,039,612 10,502,665 24,068,838
($2,184,422) $2,049,181 $12,466,568 $24,696,429
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CITY OF PACIFICA
Reconciliation of the
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
with the
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The schedule below reconciles the Net Changes in Fund Balances reported on the
Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances, which measure only changes in current asset and current liabilities on the
modified accrual basis, with the Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities
reported in the Statement of Activities, which is prepared on the full accrual basis.

Net Change in fund balance $627,591
Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because of the following:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is capitalized and allocated
over estimated lives and reported as depreciation expense.
Capital outlay expenditures are therefore added back to fund balances 4,553,939
Depreciation expense (1,687,534)
Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but
issuing debt increase long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
in the Statement of Net Position the repayment reduces long-term liabilities.
Repayment of debt principal 971,335
Interest expense (520,444)
Amortization of loss on refunding (32,466)
The amounts below included in the Statement of Activities do not provide
(require) the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported
as revenue or expenditures in governmental funds:
Compensated absences (net change) 34,390
Net pension liabilities (net change) (4,202,591)
Net OPEB liabilities (72,586)
The internal services funds are used by management to charge costs of
certain activities such as insurance and central garage, to individual funds.
The net revenues (expenses) of the internal service funds are reported with
governmental activities. 863,837
Changes in net position of governmental activities $535,471

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CITY OF PACIFICA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

Governmental
Business-Type Activities Activities
Major Non-major Total Internal
Enterprise Fund Enterprise Fund  Enterprise Service
Sewer Utility Beach Parking Funds Funds
Assets:
Current Assets:
Cash and investments (Note 3) $7,953,075 $7,953,075 $4,863,572
Cash and investments with fiscal agents (Note 3) 14,193,533 14,193,533
Accounts receivable 9,507 $24,023 33,530 1,523
Due from other funds (Note 9) 7,562
Prepaid items 359,054 359,054
Inventory 143,675 143,675 22,815
Total Current Assets 22,666,406 24,023 22,682,867 4,887,910
Noncurrent Assets:
Advance to other funds (Note 9) 1,956,755 1,956,755
Capital assets, not being depreciated (Note 4) 18,789,624 18,789,624 258,774
Capital assets, being depreciated, net
of accumulated depreciation (Note 4) 37,018,459 18,300 37,036,759 1,607,799
Total Noncurrent assets 57,764,838 18,300 57,783,138 1,866,573
Total Assets 80,431,244 42,323 80,466,005 6,754,483
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charge on refunding (Note 5) 292,016 292,016
Related to OPEB (Note 6) 31,401 31,401
Related to pension (Note 7) 400,352 400,352
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 723,769 723,769
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 4,108,265 19,783 4,128,048 301,198
Due to other funds (Note 9) 7,562
Interest payable 97,318 97,318 566
Claims payable (Note 8):
Due within one year 137,898
Compensated absences (Note 1M):
Due within one year 189,037 12,084 201,121 15,103
Due in more than one year 131,364 6,797 138,161 11,393
Long term debt (Note 5):
Due within one year 2,454,787 2,454,787 16,367
Due in more than one year 45,865,807 45,865,807 135,707
Net OPEB Liabilities, due in more than one year (Note 6) 1,134,727 1,134,727
Net pension liabilities:
Due in more than one year (Note 7) 1,241,738 1,241,738
Total Liabilities 55,223,043 46,226 55,261,707 618,232
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Related to OPEB (Note 6) 112,275 112,275
Related to pension (Note 7) 51,856 51,856
Total Deferred inflows of Resources 164,131 164,131
Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 15,985,969 15,985,969 1,866,573
Unrestricted 9,781,870 (3,903) 9,777,967 4,269,678
Total Net Position $25,767,839 ($3,903) $25,763,936 $6,136,251

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CITY OF PACIFICA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

IN FUND NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services
Other operating income

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Personnel services
Administration
Supplies and materials
Insurance
Outside contractors
Maintenance
Utilities
Insurance claims
Depreciation (Note 4)

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Non-operating revenues (Expenses).
Investment earnings
Intergovernmental revenues
Gain on sale of capital assets
Interest and fiscal charges
Amortization

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Income (Loss) Before Transfers

Transfers:
Transfers in (Note 9)
Transfers out (Note 9)

Changes in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year, as restated (Note 11)

Net Position, End of Year

Governmental
Business-Type Activities Activities
Major Non-major Total Internal
Enterprise Fund Enterprise Fund Enterprise Service
Sewer Utility Beach Parking Funds Funds
$13,623,033 $543,919  $14,166,952 $1,512,339
138,783 138,783 994,170
13,761,816 543,919 14,305,735 2,506,509
4,005,488 470,552 4,476,040 508,246
976,907 59,783 1,036,690 34,866
1,080,978 14,078 1,095,056 349,137
365,252 365,252 905,813
81,542 81,542 7,940
466,597 15,700 482,297 58,161
1,682,791 1,682,791
227,318
2,775,873 2,313 2,778,186 490,440
11,435,428 562,426 11,997,854 2,581,921
2,326,388 (18,507) 2,307,881 (75,412)
442 917 442 917 16,031
31,546
11,919
(1,469,113) (1,469,113) (9,027)
(17,918) (17,818)
(1,044,114) (1,044,114) 50,469
1,282,274 (18,507) 1,263,767 (24,943)
26,272 26,272 1,177,779
(124,615) (124,615) (288,999)
1,183,831 (18,507) 1,165,424 863,837
24,583,908 14,604 24,598,512 5,272,414
$25,767,839 ($3,903) $25,763,936 $6,136,251

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CITY OF PACIFICA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Governmental
Business-Type Activities Activities
Major Non-major Total Internal
Enterprise Fund Enterprise Fund Enterprise Service
Sewer Utility Beach Parking Funds Funds
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers $13,867,774 $522,509 $14,390,283 $2,512,780
Receipts from other funds 7,562 7,562
Payments to suppliers (1,248,960) (73,574) (1,322,534) (1,165,733)
Payments for claims (250,012)
Payments to and on behalf of employees (3,845,935) (470,996) (4,316,931) (524,254)
Payments to other funds (7,562) (7,562)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 8,765,317 (14,499) 8,750,818 572,781
Cash Flows from Noncapital and Related Financing Activities:
Intergovernmental revenues 31,546
Interfund payment (288,999)
Interfund receipts 72,339 72,339 1,177,779
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital and
Related Financing Activities 72,339 72,339 920,326
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase of capital assets (17,660,486) (20,613) (17,681,099) (611,162)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 11,919
Principal payments on bonds and notes (2,734,029) (2,734,029) (14,624)
Interest paid (1,466,059) (1,466,059) (9,027)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities (21,860,574) (20,613) (21,881,187) (622,894)
Cash Flows from Ihvesting Activities:
Interest received 442 917 442917 16,031
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 442 917 442 917 16,031
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (12,580,001) (35,112) (12,615,113) 886,244
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Fiscal year 34,726,609 35,112 34,761,721 3,977,328
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Fiscal Year $22,146,608 $22,146,608 $4,863,572
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents to
Statement of Net Position:
Cash and investments $7,953,075 $7,953,075
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 14,193,533 14,193,533 $4,863,572
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $22,146,608 $22,146,608 $4,863,572
(Continued)

See accompanying notes to financial statements

40



CITY OF PACIFICA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Governmental
Business-Type Activities Activities
Major Non-major Total Internal
Enterprise Fund Enterprise Fund Enterprise Service
Sewer Utility Beach Parking Funds Funds

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (loss) $2,326,388 ($18,507) $2,307,881 ($75,412)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Depreciation 2,775,873 2,313 2,778,186 490,440
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:
Accounts Receivable 18,810 (21,410) (2,600)
Due from other funds (7,562) (7,562)
Prepaid Items 2,272 2,272
Inventories 84,876 84,876 6,271
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3,405,107 15,987 3,421,094 190,131
Due to other funds 7,562 7,562
Accrued liabilities 53
Claims payable (22,694)
Net Pension/OPEB Liability,
Deferred Inflows and Deferred Outflows 161,107 161,107
Compensated Absences (1,554) (444) (1,998) (16,008)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $8,765,317 ($14,499) $8,750,818 $572,781

Noncash Transactions
Amortization of bond premium ($17,918)

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CITY OF PACIFICA
SUCCESSOR AGENCY
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUND

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

Assets:
Cash and investments (Note 3) $501,546
Cash and investments with fiscal agents (Note 3) 224,801
Total Assets 726,347
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,198
Interest payable 34,204
Loan payable to the City - due in more than one year (Note 10) 3,777,419
Long-term debt:
Due within one year (Note 13) 60,000
Due in more than one year (Note 13) 1,140,000
Total Liabilities 5,012,821
Net Position:
Restricted for debt service 50,000
Unrestricted (4,336,474)
Total Net Position (Deficit) ($4,286,474)

See accompanying notes to financial statements

42



CITY OF PACIFICA
SUCCESSOR AGENCY
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Additions:
Investment revenue $3,160
Taxes and assessments 216,814
Total Additions 219,974
Deductions:
Interest expense 126,065
Community development expense 4,134
Total Deductions 130,199
Change in Net Position 89,775
Net Position (Deficit)at Beginning of Year (4,376,249)
Net Position (Deficit) at End of Year ($4,286,474)

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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CITY OF PACIFICA, CALIFORNIA
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The basic financial statements of the City of Pacifica (City) have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“USGAAP”) as
applied to governmental agencies. The Governmental Accounting Standards Boards (“GASB”)
is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The more significant accounting principles are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Pacifica was incorporated November 22, 1957 under the general laws of the State of
California and enjoys all the rights and privileges applicable to a General Law City. The City
operates under a Council-Manager form of government. There are five Council Members who
serve overlapping terms of four years, and the Council, in turn, elects one of the Council
Members to serve as Mayor for one year. This legislative body selects a City Manager to
administer the affairs of the City. The City provides the following services: public safety
(police, fire, and civil defense), highways and streets, sanitation, health and social services,
culture-recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative
services.

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the
accompanying financial statements include the financial activities of the City.

The City of Pacifica Financing Authority is a separate government entity whose purpose is to
assist with the financing certain public capital facilities for the City through the issuance of bonds
or other forms of debt. The Authority is controlied by the City and has the same governing body
as the City, which also performs all accounting and administrative functions for the Authority.
The Authority does not issue separate financial statements.

The City participates in the ABAG Plan Corporation, a public entity risk pool, whose financial
activities are not included in the basic financial statements as it is administered by a board,
separate from and independent, of the City (See Note 8).

There are no other entities which meet the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 14 as amended by GASB Statements No. 39 and No. 61, criteria for blended or
discrete disclosure within these financial statements.

B. Basis of Presentation
The City’s basic financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards

Board (GASB) is the acknowledged standard-setting body for establishing accounting and
financial reporting standards followed by governmental entities in the United States of America.
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CITY OF PACIFICA, CALIFORNIA
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):
B. Basis of Presentation (Continued)

The City’s government-wide financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, and a
Statement of Activities. These statements present summaries of governmental activities and
business-type activities for the City, accompanied by a total column. These financial statements
include the financial activities of the overall City government, except for fiduciary activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities.
Governmental activities are financed generally through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and
other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities (Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund) are
financed generally through user fees.

C. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each function of the City’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that
are specifically associated with a program or function and therefore are clearly identifiable to a
particular function. Program revenues include three categories: (1) charges for services, (2)
operating grants and contributions and (3) capital grants and contributions. Revenues that are
not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.
Interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation on the
Statement of Activities.

Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by Governmental Accounting Standards
Board No.34, Basic Financial Statements-and Management's Discussion and Analysis-for
State and Local Governments (“GASB No. 34”) in regards to interfund activities, payables and
receivables.

D. Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major
funds aggregated. An accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the
differences in fund balance as presented in these statements to the net position presented in
the government-wide financial statements.

The governmental fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds.
Separate statements for each fund category—governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary—are
presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major individual funds, each of
which is displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and
reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows for all
proprietary funds. The internal service funds are also presented in these statements. However,
internal service balances and activities have been combined with the governmental activities in
the government-wide financial statements.
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CITY OF PACIFICA, CALIFORNIA
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):
D. Financial Statements (Continued)

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the “economic resources” measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or
noncurrent) are included on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases
(expenses) in total net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized
in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which
liabilities are incurred.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the
primary operation of the fund. All other revenues are reported as nonoperating revenues.
Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund.
All other expenses are reported as nonoperating expenses.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. Fiduciary funds represent private-purpose trust funds, which
the City serves as a trustee for the Successor Agency. Trust funds are accounted for on an
economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of accounting. The City has one
RDA Successor Agency private-purpose trust fund.

E. Major Funds

GASB 34 defines major funds and requires that the City’s major governmental funds be
identified and presented separately in the Fund financial statements. All other governmental
funds, called non-major funds, are combined and reported in a single column, regardless of their
fund-type. Major funds are defined as funds which have either assets and deferred outflows,
liabilities and deferred inflows, revenues or expenditures/expenses equal to or greater than ten
percent of their fund-type total and five percent of the grand total of all fund types, excluding
fiduciary. The general fund is always a major fund. The major funds of the City are:

. General Fund — The General Fund is used to account for the resources to carry
out basic governmental activities of the City such as general government, public
safety, public works, community development, and parks, beaches, and
recreation, which are not required to be accounted for in another fund.

. Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund — This fund was established to receive and
expend the City’s allocation of the State Gasoline Taxes. Each City is allocated
funds on a population basis in accordance with Section 2103, 2105, 2106,
2107 and 2107.5 of the California Street and Highway Code. Population is
determined by the latest Federal Census or survey requested and certified by
the Cities and conducted by the State Department of Finance. Expenditures
may be made for construction or purchasing of right-of-way on minor streets.
Expenditures of money apportioned under Section 2107 may be made for any
street purpose. Under Section 2107.5 a flat allocation of $6,000 per year is
granted the City for street engineering.
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CITY OF PACIFICA, CALIFORNIA
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):

E. Major Funds (Continued)

°

Davies Trust Special Revenue Fund — This fund was established to account
for a donation by a private individual which is restricted for specific purposes.
The funds are to be used to help acquire, build, remodel, improve, support, and
maintain the equipment, buildings, grounds, yard, gardens, and landscaped
areas of the various parks, beaches, and recreational area located in Pacifica, to
conduct related educational and recreational programs for the benefit of the
general public.

Disaster Accounting Special Revenue Fund — This fund is used to account for
all revenues received and expenditures incurred due to natural and man-made
disasters.

General Capital Improvement Capital Projects Fund — This fund is used to
account for revenues derived from fees and apportionments from General
Fund to be used for the acquisition, construction, and improvement of major
capital facilities of the City.

Debt Service Fund — This fund is used to account for the accumulated and the
disbursement of account for expenditures and financing of various long-term
debt liabilities.

The City reports the following major enterprise fund:

The Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund — This fund accounts for the operation and
maintenance of the City’s wastewater collection system including operating
costs of the wastewater collection system and water recycling plant.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

.

The Internal Service Funds account for the financing of goods or services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the
government and to other government units on a cost reimbursement basis. The
City has two internal service funds, the Motor Pool Fund and the Self Insurance
Fund. The Motor Pool Fund accounts for the City’s central garage, and the Self
Insurance Fund accounts for the employee dental, workers’ compensation,
general liability, property, and automobile liability insurance.

The RDA Successor Agency Private-Purpose Trust Fund accounts for the
former Redevelopment Agency activities.
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CITY OF PACIFICA, CALIFORNIA
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):
F. Basis of Accounting

The Government-wide, Proprietary funds, and Fiduciary funds financial statements are required
by GASB 34 to be reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the City’s assets and deferred outflows, liabilities and
deferred inflows, including capital assets and long-term liabilities, are included in the
accompanying Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Activities presents changes in net
position.

Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are
earned, while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred regardless
of when the related cash flows take place.

The Governmental funds financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus, and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current
assets and liabilities (except for long-term advances from the City) are included in the Balance
Sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances present
increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other
financing uses) in net current assets. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and available to
finance expenditures of the current period.

The City considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the
revenue are collected within ninety days after fiscal year end. The primary revenue sources,
which have been treated as susceptible to accrual by the City, are property taxes, sales taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, other taxes and investment earnings. Expenditures are recorded
in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and
interest on long-term debt and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures
to the extent that they have matured. Capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Proceeds of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are
reported as other financing sources.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives or receives value without directly receiving
or giving value in exchange, include taxes, grants, entittements and donations. On the accrual
basis, revenue from taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied or
assessed. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Grant revenues are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements are met.
Under the terms of grant agreements, the City may fund certain programs with a combination of
cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants and general revenues. Thus, both
restricted and unrestricted net position may be available to finance program expenditures. The
City’s policy is to first apply restricted grant resources to such programs, followed by general
revenues if necessary.
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NOTE 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):
G. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considered cash and cash equivalents
(investments with maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase) as short term,
highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so near
their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in
interest rates. The City follows the practice of pooling the cash of all funds, including the City’s
Enterprise and Internal Service Funds.

H. Investments

Investments are reported at fair value, except for investments that are not transferable and have
terms that are not affected by change in market rates are reported at cost.

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as revenues from use of
money reported for that fiscal year. Revenues from use of money include interest earnings,
change in fair value, gains or losses realized upon the liquidation, maturity, or sale of investment
and rental income. Changes in the fair value of investments during this fiscal year were
calculated and booked.

L Receivables and Payables

All accounts, grants, tax, and note receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible
accounts if applicable, and estimated refunds due.

J. Inventories and Prepaid Items

General fund inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed, rather than when
purchased. These inventories are stated at cost, using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method.
Inventories in the proprietary funds are stated at the lower of cost or market, and consist of
expendable materials and supplies.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods, and are
recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Inventories and prepaid items, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by
nonspendable fund balance for noncurrent assets in governmental funds, to indicate that they
do not constitute resources available for appropriation.

K. Capital Assets

The City's assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated historical cost on the
government-wide Statement of Net Position and the proprietary fund financial statements. City
policy has set the capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $5,000. Gifts or
contributions of capital assets are recorded at fair value on the date donated. Depreciation of
capital assets is charged as an expense each year, and the total amount of accumulated
depreciation taken over the years, is reported on the respective statements as a reduction in the
book value of capital assets.
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NOTE 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):
L. Encumbrances

The City uses encumbrances to control expenditure commitments for the year. Encumbrances
represent commitments related to executor contracts not yet performed and purchase orders
not yet filled. Commitments for such expenditure of monies are encumbered to reserve a
portion of applicable appropriations. Encumbrances still open at year end are not accounted for
as expenditures and liabilities, but as restricted, or unassigned fund balance.

M. Compensated Absences

City employees accrue vacation, sick, holiday, and compensatory time off benefits. An
employee may accumulate vacation time equal to an amount as stipulated in their contracts. No
cash compensation is payable for accrued vacation until the employee terminates employment.
Sick leave is compensated in cash only upon an employee's retirement. Maximum limit per
employee is $3,000 or one quarter of employee's sick leave credit, whichever is lower. Two
employee groups have elected to participate in a retirement health savings program and have
directed vacation and limited sick leave cash out to separation of this program. It is the City’s
policy to allow employees to accumulate compensatory time within set limits instead of drawing
overtime. This accumulation may subsequently be exchanged into cash or time taken.

All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only when they
have matured (such as vacation time, estimated to be paid upon retirement by the end of the
fiscal year with expendable available financial resources). Each fiscal year, an adjustment to
the liability is made based on pay rate changes and adjustments for the current portion. The
General Fund is primarily responsible for the repayment of the governmental portion of
compensated absences.

Changes in compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2018, were as follows:

Gowernmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Beginning Balance $1,537,905 $341,280 $1,879,185
Additions 1,251,648 187,373 1,439,021
Payments (1,302,046) (189,371) (1,491,417)
Ending Balance $1,487,507 $339,282 $1,826,789
Current Portion $847,879 $201,121 $1,049,000
Non-current Portion $639,628 $138,161 $777,789
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NOTE 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):
N. Property Tax Revenues

California Constitution Article Xlll A limits the combined property tax rate to one percent of a
property’s assessed valuation. Additional taxes may be imposed with voter approval. Assessed
value is calculated at one hundred percent of a property’s fair value, as defined by Article XIII A,
and may be increased no more than two percent per year unless a change in ownership occurs.
The County of San Mateo collects the taxes and distributes them to taxing jurisdictions on the
basis of assessed valuations subject to adjustments for voter-approved debt. The City receives
property taxes pursuant to an arrangement with the County known as the “Teeter Plan,”
whereby the County assumes responsibility for the collection of delinquent taxes and pays the
full allocation to the City. The City recognizes property tax revenues (including tax increment
revenues) to the extent of each year’s tax allocation received or to be received within 60 days
after the end of each fiscal year.

The County assesses properties, bills for, collects, and distributes property taxes per the
following schedule:

Secured Unsecured
Valuation dates January 1 January 1
Lien/Levy dates July 1 July 1
Due dates 50% on November 1 July 1
50% on February 1
Delinquent as of December 10 August 31
April 10

The term “Unsecured” refers to taxes on personal property other than real estate, land, and
buildings. These taxes are secured by liens on property being taxed.

0. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTE 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):

P. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The City
categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value into three levels based on the extent to which inputs
used in measuring fair value are observable in the market.

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 inputs are inputs — other than quoted prices included within level 1 — that are
observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.

If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one level of the
fair value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest priority level
input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Q. Expenditures in Excess of Appropriations

The following funds incurred departmental expenditures in excess of appropriations:

Excess of
Expenditures Over
Fund/Department Appropriations
Major Funds:
Capital Projects Fund:

General Capital Improvement $126,396
Davies Trust Special Revenue Fund 104
Disaster Accounting Special Revenue Fund 3,167,388

Non-Major Funds:
Housing In-Lieu Special Revenue Fund 12,249
Park, Beaches and Recreation Special Revenue Fund 13,245
Parks and Playfields Capital Projects Fund 80,096
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NOTE 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability:

Budgetary information

The City operates under the general law of the State of California, and annually adopts a budget
to be effective July 1 for the ensuing fiscal year. The City Manager submits a Preliminary
Budget to the City Council on or about May 15 each year. This Preliminary Budget is the fiscal
plan for the ensuing twelve months starting July 1, and includes proposals for expenditures for
operations and capital improvement, and the resources to meet them. City Council conducts
public hearings at Council Chambers before adopting the budget. The Council approves total
appropriations at the department level in the General Fund, and at the fund level in other funds.
The Budget is adopted by City resolution prior to June 30.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. The City Manager is
authorized to transfer budget appropriations within departments in conformance with the
adopted policies set by the City Council. All other transfers must be approved by the City
Council. Any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any department must be approved by
the City Council. Expenditures are budgeted at, and may not legally exceed, the department
level for the General Fund and the fund level for Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital
Projects and Internal Service Funds. Budgeted amounts shown are as originally adopted, or as
amended by the City Council during the fiscal year. During the fiscal year, several
supplementary appropriations were necessary.

Budgets for General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital Projects, and Internal Service
Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (USGAAP). Except for Capital Project Funds, appropriations lapse at
fiscal year-end and are rebudgeted for the coming year. The following capital projects funds are
not budgeted annually: Aircraft Noise Project Fund, Parking In-lieu Fund, Excess ERAF Fund
and Public Library Fund.

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services.
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for
the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental
funds. Encumbrances outstanding at fiscal year-end are recorded as restricted, committed, or
assigned fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the
commitments will be honored during the subsequent fiscal year.

Deficit Fund Balances/Net Position

As of June 30, 2018, the following funds had a deficit net position/fund balance:

Disaster Accounting Special Revenue Fund ($3,893,322)
General Capital Improvement Capital Projects Fund (2,184,422)
Beach Parking Enterprise Fund (3,903)
Successor Agency Private Purpose Trust Fund (4,286,474)
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NOTE 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability (Continued):
The deficits in the governmental funds are due to the City paying expenditures in advance of
receiving revenues. The majority of these deficits are going to be repaid once reimbursements

are received from the grantor, and if there are any outstanding deficits after the repayments, the
General Fund would cover these deficits when the fund is closed out.

NOTE 3 - Cash and Investments:

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2018 are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:

Statement of net position:

Cash and investments $32,033,584
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 14,542,689
Restricted cash and investments 3,464,691

Statement of fiduciary net position:
Cash and investments 501,546
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 224,801
Total cash and investments $50,767,311
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NOTE 3 - Cash and Investments (Continued):

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment
Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California
Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also
identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the City’s investment paolicy,
where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit
risk. This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are
governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the City, rather than the general provisions of
the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy.

Maximum Maximum
Minimum  Percentage/ Investment
Maximum Credit Investment in One
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality of Portfolio Issuer
Commercial Paper 270 days A 25% None
Bankers Acceptances 180 days A 40% None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None 50% None
U.S. Government Agency Issues 5 years None 50% None
Certificates of Deposit 5 years None 30% None
State of California Local Agency
Investment Funds (State Pool) N/A None $65,000,000 $65,000,000
ganks _and Savings and Loan Time N/A A-1+ 30% None
eposits
Repurchase Agreements 1 year None 15% None
Mutual Funds 5 years AAAmM 15% None

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investment of debt proceeds held by trustees is governed by provisions of the debt agreements,
rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment
policy. The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held
by trustee. The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address
interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

Maximum Minimum Credit
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality
Municipal Bonds None AAA
Commercial Paper 270 days A-1
U.S. Treasury Obligations None None
U.S. Agency Securities None None
Time Deposits (Unsecured) 30 days A-1
Money Market Funds None AAAM
Investment Contracts None AA-
Local Agency Investment Fund None None
Certificates of Deposit 1 year A-1+
Bankers Acceptances 1 year A-1+
Pre-refunding Municipal Bonds None AAA
State and Municipal Bonds None Two Highest Categories
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NOTE 3 - Cash and Investments (Continued):

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the
sensitivity of its fair value to change in market interest rates. One of the ways that the City
manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of shorter term and
longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the
portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide the
cash flows and liquidity needed for operations.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’'s investments and those held by
trustees to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the
distribution of the City’s investments by maturity:

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

. 12 Months
Investment Type Or Less Totals

California Local Agency Investment Fund $7,233,473 $7,233,473
Held by Trustees:

Money Market Fund 16,300,030 16,300,030

Total Investments $23,533,503 23,533,503

Cash in Banks 27,229,863

Petty Cash 3,945

Total Cash 27,233,808

Total Cash and Investments $50,767,311

Money market mutual funds are available for withdrawal on demand at June 30, 2018, and have
an average maturity of 20 days.

Investments with Fair Values Highly Sensitive to Interest Rate Fluctuations

The City’s investments (including investments held by trustees) include the following
investments that are highly sensitive to interest rate fluctuations (to a greater degree than
already indicated in the information provided above). The City does not hold any specific
investments that are highly sensitive to interest rate fluctuations (to a greater degree than
already indicated in the information provided above).

Fair Value Hierarchy

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used
to measure fair value of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in an active market for
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are
significant unobservable inputs.

Investment in the California Local Agency Investment Fund and money market mutual funds are
classified as exempt in the fair value hierarchy, as it is valued at amortized cost, which is
exempt from being classified under GASB 72.
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NOTE 3 - Cash and Investments (Continued):

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required by
(where applicable) the California Government Code, the City’s investment policy, or debt
agreements, and the actual rating as of fiscal year end for each investment type.

Rating as of Fiscal Year End

Investment Type AAAmM Not Rated Total
California Local Agency Investment Fund $7,233,473 $7,233,473
Held by Trustees:
Money Market Fund $16,300,030 16,300,030
Total Investments $16,300,030 $7,233,473 23,533,503
Cash in Banks 27,229,863
Petty Cash 3,945
Total Cash 27,233,808
Total Cash and Investments $50,767,311

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the City contains limitations on the amount that can be invested in any
one issuer. The City has no investments in any one issuer (other than money market funds and
an external investment pool) that represent 5% or more of total City investments.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit
risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g. broker-
dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or
collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California Government
Code and the City’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would
limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the foliowing
provision for deposits. The California Government Code requires that a financial institution
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an
undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by
the governmental unit). The fair value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal
at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows
financial institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a
value of 150% of the secured public deposits.
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NOTE 3 - Cash and Investments (Continued):

As of June 30, 2018, all of the City’s deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal
depository insurance limits were held in collateralized accounts.

Investment in State Investment Pool

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated
by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of
California. The fair value of the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying
financial statements at amounts based upon the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided
by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which
are recorded on an amortized cost basis. At June 30, 2018, these investments have an average
maturity of 193 days.
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NOTE 4 - Capital Assets:

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated cost if actual historical cost is not
available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date donated.
GASB Statement No.34 requires that all capital assets with limited useful lives be depreciated
over their estimated useful lives. The purpose of the depreciation is to spread the cost of the
capital assets equitably among all users over the life of these assets. The amount charged to
depreciation expense each year represents that year’s pro-rata share of the cost of the capital
assets. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over its expected useful life.
Capital assets with a value of $5,000 or more are capitalized.

The City has assigned the following useful lives to capital assets: Buildings and improvements
(25-30 years); Police Vehicles (4 years); Other Vehicles (5-25 years); Machinery and Equipment
(5-15 years); Collection System (20 years); and Infrastructure (15-30 years).

The following is a summary of capital assets for governmental activities as of June 30, 2018:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2017  Additions Deletions June 30, 2018

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $39,792,409 $653,171 $40,445,580
Construction in progress 1,695,829 3,647,925 5,343,754
Total capital assets not being depreciated 41,488,238 4,301,096 45,789,334
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings & improvements 15,957,906 5,200 15,963,106
Vehicles 6,884,208 611,162 ($518,339) 6,977,031
Machinery and equipment 2,715,093 81,752 2,796,845
Infrastructure 34,166,365 165,890 34,332,255
Total capital assets being depreciated 59,723,572 864,004 (518,339) 60,069,237
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & improvements (9,338,631) (486,250) (9,824,881)
Vehicles (5,577,865) (472,642) 518,339 (5,532,168)
Machinery & equipment (2,614,575) (74,667) (2,689,242)
Infrastructure (10,057,527) (1,144,415) (11,201,942)
Total accumulated depreciation (27,588,598) (2,177,974) 518,339 (29,248,233)
Depreciable capital assets, net 32,134,974 (1,313,970) 30,821,004
Total capital assets, net $73,623,212 $2,987,126 $76,610,338
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NOTE 4 - Capital Assets (Continued):

Depreciation expense for governmental activities was charged to functions as follows:

General government
Public safety
Public works

Parks, beaches, and recreation

Internal Service Fund

$47,656
374,714
962,852
302,312
490,440

Total Governmental Activities

$2,177,974

The following is a summary of capital assets for business-type activities as of June 30, 2018:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings & improvements
Collection system
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings & improvements
Collection system
Machinery & equipment

Total accumulated depreciation
Depreciable capital assets, net

Total capital assets, net
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Balance Balance
June 30, 2017 Additions June 30, 2018
$4,014,412 $4,014,412
1,318,905 $13,456,307 14,775,212
5,333,317 13,456,307 18,789,624
77,224,714 66,238 77,290,952
12,678,205 3,933,058 16,611,263
1,734,484 225,496 1,959,980
91,637,403 4,224 792 95,862,195
(49,308,980) (1,919,985) (51,228,965)
(5,433,509) (759,388) (6,192,897)
(1,304,761) (98,813) (1,403,574)
(56,047,250) (2,778,186) (58,825,436)
35,590,153 1,446,606 37,036,759
$40,923,470 $14,902 913 $55,826,383
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NOTE 5 - Long-Term Debt:

The City generally incurs debt to finance projects or purchase assets, which will have useful
lives equal to or greater than the related debt. The City’s debt issues and transactions related
to both governmental and business-type activities are summarized below and discussed in
detail subsequently.

Governmental Activities:

Balance Balance Due within
July 1, 2017 Retirements June 30, 2018 One Year
Certificates of Participation:
2016 COP $14,680,000 $14,680,000
Premium 2,297,583 ($114,879) 2,182,704
Sub-total COP 16,977,583 (114,879) 16,862,704
Capital Lease Payable:
Energy retrofit lease 699,600 (116,134) 583,466 $120,825
Pension Obligation Bonds:
2010 Pension obligation bond
(88.622%) 9,748,420 (855,201) 8,893,219 855,202
Total Governmental Activities $27,425,603 ($1,086,214) $26,339,389 $976,027
Business-type Activities:
Balance Balance Due within

July 1, 2017 Retirements June 30, 2018 One Year

Revenue bonds:

2014 Wastewater Revenue Refunding $6,740,000 $6,740,000
Net Premium 1,126,914 ($138,393) 988,521
2017 Wastewater Revenue Bonds 22,100,000 22,100,000
Net Premium 4,079,353 (163,175) 3,916,178
Sub-total Revenue bonds: 34,046,267 {(301,568) 33,744,699

Pension Obligation bonds:
2010 Pension obligation bond

(11.378%) 1,251,580 (109,798) 1,141,782 $122,882
Notes payable:
State of California Water -
Resources Board 10,329,594 (2,065,919) 8,263,675 2,065,919
Loan and Installment Agreement 5,427,182 (256,744) 5,170,438 265,986
Total notes payable 15,756,776 (2,322,663) 13,434,113 2,331,905
Total Business-Type Activities: $51,054,623 ($2,734,029) $48,320,594 $2,454,787
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NOTE 5 - Long-Term Debt (Continued):
A. Governmental Activities Debt

2016 Certificates of Participation: On October 5, 2016, the City of Pacifica issued Certificates
of Participation (COP) in the amount of $14,680,000 (par value) payable annually beginning
January 1, 2021 and with interest rates ranging from 3.000% to 5.000%, payable each July 1
and January 1, beginning January 1, 2017. The COP matures on January 1, 2037. The
purpose of the COP is to (i) prepay and defease certain outstanding certificates of participation
which were executed and delivered in 2008 for the purpose of financing and refinancing various
municipal improvements of the City, and (ii) pay certain costs of executing and delivering the
Certificates

Accounting gains or losses resulting from advance refunding of long-term debt is deferred and
amortized over the shorter of the life of the new debt or refunded debt. The deferred charge on
refunding balance at June 30, 2018 was $551,926 for the 2016 COP.

Annual debt service requirements, to maturity, for the 2016 Certificates of Participation are as
follows:

Fiscal year ended Principal Interest Total
2019 $661,850 $661,850
2020 661,850 661,850
2021 $480,000 661,850 1,141,850
2022 725,000 637,850 1,362,850
2023 705,000 601,600 1,306,600
2024 - 2028 3,995,000 2,444,750 6,439,750
2029 - 2033 4,655,000 1,382,500 6,037,500
2034 - 2037 4,120,000 341,900 4,461,900
Total $14,680,000 $7,394,150  $22,074,150
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NOTE 5 - Long-Term Debt (Continued):
A. Governmental Activities Debt (Continued)

Energy Retrofit Lease: On November 1, 2012, the City entered into a lease/purchase
agreement with Holman Capital Corporation for energy efficiency measures at various City
owned buildings. The effective interest rate on the lease is 4.0% and lease payments are
payable semiannually on November 15 and May 15, commencing May 15, 2013. The lease
ends on November 15, 2022.

Annual debt service requirements, to maturity, for the Energy Retrofit Lease are as follows:

Fiscal year ended Principal Interest Total
2019 $120,825 $22,142 $142,967
2020 125,707 17,261 142,968
2021 130,785 12,183 142,968
2022 136,069 6,899 142,968
2023 70,080 1,402 71,482
Total $583,466 $59,887 $643,353

2010 Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds: During May 2010, the City of Pacifica issued
$20,510,000 of Pension Obligation Bonds bearing interest between 1.425% and 6.899% and
payable semiannually on June 1 and December 1 each year, commencing December 1, 2010.
The bonds mature on June 1, 2030. These bonds were used to advance pay miscellaneous and
safety employee pension obligations. Approximately 88.622% of the bond proceeds were
allocated to governmental activities (including 1.71% to the Motor Pool internal service fund).

Annual debt service requirements, to maturity, for the 2010 Pension Obligation Bonds
(governmental portion) are as follows:

Fiscal year ended Principal Interest Total
2019 $957,118 $591,002 $1,548,120
2020 372,212 534,035 906,247
2021 425,386 510,392 935,778
2022 487,421 483,372 970,793
2023 553,888 452,411 1,006,299
2024 - 2028 3,970,266 1,613,439 5,583,705
2029 - 2030 2,126,928 218,271 2,345,199
Total $8,893,219 $4,402,922  $13,296,141
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NOTE 5 - Long-Term Debt (Continued):
B. Business Type Activities Debt

Loan and Installment Agreement: On August 27, 2012, the City of Pacifica entered into a
loan and installment agreement with the City of Pacifica Financing Authority in the amount of
$6,402,594 payable annually beginning July 1, 2013 at an interest rate of 3.6%, payable each
July 1 and January 1, beginning January 1, 2013. The agreement matures on July 1, 2032.
The purpose of this agreement is to (i) fund an escrow to cause the mandatory tender of the
outstanding 2001B Wastewater Revenue Bonds (ii) provide funds relating to the Equalization
Basin Project, the Collection System Capacity Improvement Projects, and the Collection System
Repair, Rehabilitation, and Replacement Projects, (iii) fund certain costs relating to the
defeasance of the 2001B Wastewater Revenue Bonds, (iv) fund or provide for satisfaction of the
Reserve Fund Requirement, and (vi) pay the costs incurred in connection with the execution of
the Loan and Installment Sale.

Accounting gains or losses resulting from advance refunding of long-term debt is deferred and
amortized over the shorter of the life of the new debt or refunded debt. The deferred charge on
refunding balance at June 30, 2018 was $51,963 for the Loan and Instaliment Sale.

The defeased 2001B Wastewater Revenue Bonds have been paid off. Annual debt service
requirements, to maturity, for the Loan and Installment Agreement are as follows:

Fiscal year ended Principal Interest Total
2019 $265,986 $181,348 $447,334
2020 275,562 171,600 447,162
2021 285,482 161,501 446,983
2022 295,759 151,039 446,798
2023 306,407 140,200 446,607
2024 - 2028 1,705,695 524,255 2,229,950
2029 - 2033 2,035,547 188,383 2,223,930
Total $5,170,438 $1,518,326 $6,688,764
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NOTE 5 - Long-Term Debt (Continued):
B. Business Type Activities Debt (Continued)

2010 Taxable Pension Obligation Bonds: During May 2010, the City of Pacifica issued
$20,510,000 of Pension Obligation Bonds bearing interest between 1.425% and 6.899% and
payable semiannually on June 1 and December 1 each year, commencing December 1, 2010.
The bonds mature on June 1, 2030. These bonds were used to advance pay miscellaneous and
safety employee pension obligations. Approximately 11.378% of the bond proceeds were
allocated to business-type activities.

Annual debt service requirements, to maturity, for the 2010 Pension Obligation Bonds
(business-type portion) are as follows:

Fiscal year ended Principal Interest Total
2019 $122,882 $75,878 $198,760
2020 47,788 68,564 116,352
2021 54,614 65,528 120,142
2022 62,579 62,059 124,638
2023 71,113 58,084 129,197
2024 - 2028 509,734 207,146 716,880
2029 - 2030 273,072 28,023 301,095
Total $1,141,782 $565,282 $1,707,064

State of California Water Resource Control Board Loan: On February 20, 1997, the State of
California Water Resource Control Board entered into an agreement to loan to the City
$41,304,818 for the construction of a new wastewater treatment facility.

No interest is charged on the loan. Principal payments are due each July 31, with the final
payment due July 31, 2021.

Annual debt service requirements, to maturity, for the State of California Water Resource
Control Board Loan are as follows:

Fiscal year ended Principal Total
2019 $2,065,919 $2,065,919
2020 2,065,919 2,065,919
2021 2,065,919 2,065,919
2022 2,065,918 2,065,918
Total $8,263,675 $8,263,675
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NOTE 5 - Long-Term Debt (Continued):

B. Business Type Activities Debt (Continued)

2014 Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds: In November 2014, the City issued $6,470,000
in 2014 Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds (2014 bonds) with interest rates ranging from

5% to 5.25%. The proceeds were used to advance refund the 2004 Wastewater Revenue
Refunding Bonds.

Net proceeds of $9.3 million (including a $1.4 million premium and other city funds) were
deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide funds for the future debt
service payment on the refunded bonds. As a result, the 2004 Wastewater Revenue Refunding
Bonds are considered defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed. The
reacquisition price totaled to the net carrying amount of the refunded bonds.

Interests on the 2014 bonds are payable semiannually on April 1 and October 1 each year,
commenced April 1, 2015. Principal payments which are due each October 1 will commence on
October 1, 2022, with the last payment due on October 1, 2026. The bonds are paid from and
secured by the net revenues of the wastewater collection system of the City.

Annual debt service requirements, to maturity, for the 2014 Wastewater Revenue Refunding
Bonds are as follows:

Fiscal year ended Principal Interest Total
2019 $337,000 $337,000
2020 337,000 337,000
2021 337,000 337,000
2022 337,000 337,000
2023 $1,520,000 299,000 1,819,000
2024 - 2028 5,220,000 419,000 5,639,000
Total $6,740,000 $2,066,000 $8,806,000

67



CITY OF PACIFICA, CALIFORNIA
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 5 - Long-Term Debt (Continued):

B. Business Type Activities Debt (Continued)

2017 Wastewater Revenue Bonds: In June 2017, the City issued $22,100,000 in 2017
Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds (2017 bonds) at an interest rate of 5%. The proceeds

were used to fund the acquisition, construction, and installation of certain improvements to the
Wastewater system.

Net proceeds of $26.2 million (including a $4 million premium and other city funds) were
deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide funds for the future debt
service payment on the refunded bonds.

Interests on the 2017 bonds are payable semiannually on April 1 and October 1 each year,
commenced October 1, 2017. Principal payments which are due each October 1 will commence
on October 1, 2022, with the last payment due on October 1, 2042. The bonds are paid from
and secured by the net revenues of the wastewater collection system of the City.

Annual debt service requirements, to maturity, for the 2017 Wastewater Revenue Refunding
Bonds are as follows:

Fiscal year ended Principal Interest Total
2019 $1,061,600 $1,061,600
2020 1,061,600 1,061,600
2021 1,061,600 1,061,600
2022 1,061,600 1,061,600
2023 $625,000 1,045,975 1,670,975
2024 - 2028 3,630,000 4,716,000 8,346,000
2029 - 2033 4,665,000 3,684,875 8,349,875
2034 - 2038 5,790,000 2,552,800 8,342,800
2039 - 2043 7,390,000 960,750 8,350,750

Total $22,100,000 $17,206,800 $39,306,800
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NOTE 6 - Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB):
Plan Description

The City participates in the CalPERS medical program. Employees in the following bargaining
groups who retire from the City and receive a CalPERS pension are eligible to receive City
contributions towards the costs of their (OPEB) coverage:

Department Directors
Battalion Chiefs

Firefighters

Management Unit

Police Officers

Police Supervisors

Police Management
Wastewater Treatment Plant
Miscellaneous Employees

In general, employees in the above groups may choose to receive their medical benefits from
Union Trust Plans (except Public Safety — Firefighters and Police) or enroll in any of the
CalPERS medical plans. For the retirees who do not participate in the CalPERS medical
programs, the City does not make a contribution toward the cost of postemployment healthcare
benefits. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements No. 75.

Funding Policy

Under its arrangement with the CalPERS medical program, the City contributes the minimum
amount provided under Government Code Section 22825 of the Public Employees Medical and
Hospital Care Act. Retirees must contribute any premium amounts in excess of the City
contribution.

Retired Department Directors, retired Management Unit employees, unrepresented managers,
and confidential employees receive an additional $100 monthly benefit.

The City’s policy is to contribute an amount sufficient to pay the current year's minimum
employer contribution only.

Employees Covered

Membership in the plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2018:

Active employees 155
Inactive employees receiving benefit payments 51
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet
receiving benefit payments 89
Total 295
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NOTE 6 - Other Post-Employment Benefits (Continued):

Total OPEB Liability

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: The City’s total OPEB liability was measured as of
June 30, 2017 and was determined by an actuarial valuation that was rolled forward to

determine the total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2017, based on the following actuarial methods
and assumptions:

Actuarial Assumption June 30, 2018 Measurement Date
Actuarial Valuation Date June 30, 2016
Contribution Policy No pre-funding
*3.58% at June 30, 2017
Discount Rate *2.85% at June 30, 2016
General Inflation 2.75% per annum
Aggregate Payroll Increase 3.00% per annum

Mortality, Retirement, Disability, TerminaticCalPERS 1997-2011 Experience Study
Post-retirement mortality projected fully

Mortality Improvement generational with Scale MP-16

Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.58%.
Changes in Total OPEB Liability

The changes in the total OPEB Liability follows:

Total OPEB
Liability
Balance as of June 30, 2017:
(Measurement date 6/30/16) $6,664,823
Changes Recognized for the Measurement Period:
Service cost 351,865
Interest 197,539
Benefit changes -
Differences between expected and actual experien -
Changes of assumptions (739,260)
Contributions from the employer -
Benefit payments (170,926)
Net changes (360,782)
Balance as of June 30, 2018:
(Measurement date 6/30/17) $6,304,041
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NOTE 6 - Other Post-Employment Benefits (Continued):

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-

percentage-paint higher than the current discount rate:

Total OPEB Liability/(Asset)

Discount Rate -1% Current Discount Rate Discount Rate +1%
(2.58 %) (3.58%) (4.58%)
$7,350,942 $6,304,041 $5,471,580

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1-percentage-
point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rate:

Total OPEB Liability/(Asset)

1% Decrease Current Healthcare Cost 1% Increase
Trend Rates
(5.25% Pre-Med/ (6.25% Pre-Med/ (7.25% Pre-Med/
5.45% Post-Med decreasing 6.45% Post-Med decreasing to  7.45% Post-Med decreasing
to 3.75% in 2021) 4.75% in 2021) t0 5.75% in 2021)
$5,325,184 $6,304,041 $7,560,692
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NOTE 6 - Other Post-Employment Benefits (Continued):
OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized OPEB Expense of $434,895. As of fiscal
year ended June 30, 2018, the City reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related
to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Employer contributions made

subsequent to the measurement date $174,450 *
Differences between actual and expected experience
Changes of assumptions $623,751
Total $174,450 $623,751

* Include $118,450 cash benefit payments, $1,000 administrative costs
and $55,000 implied subsidy benefit payments.

$174,450 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the OPEB liability in the year ended
June 30, 2019. Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB will be recognized as future OPEB expense as follows:

Year Annual
Ended June 30 Amortization
2019 ($115,509)
2020 (115,509)
2021 (115,509)
2022 (115,509)
2023 (115,509)
Thereafter (46,206)
Total ($623,751)
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NOTE 7 - Pension Plans:
A. General Information about the Pension Plans
The City has pension plans with the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS)
and the California Public Employees Retirement System (PARS). Information about the pension
plans follows.

California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS)

Plan Descriptions — All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to
participate in the City’s defined benefit pension plans as follows:
¢ Miscellaneous (agent multiple-employer plan)
Safety Police (cost-sharing multiple-employer plan)
Pepra Safety Police (cost-sharing multiple-employer plan)
Safety Fire (cost-sharing multiple-employer plan)
Pepra Safety Fire (cost-sharing multiple-employer plan)

These plans are administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS), which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its participating
member employers. Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and
City resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that includ